

(UAS) Support Center Case Management System (CMS) will streamline how respondents' questions will be answered. Specifically, the UAS Support Center CMS Customer Inquiry form allows the public and other stakeholders to ask the FAA questions, as well as get the appropriate answer/information that is needed to operate their UAS or drone safely.

The UAS Support Center will have a publicly available form to submit inquiries. This form will allow the UAS Support Center to collect the appropriate information about the respondent's name (*i.e.*, first and last), preferred method of communications (*i.e.*, email or phone), email address, phone number, zip code (if needed), self-identification of type of flyer (*i.e.*, recreational, commercial/business, public safety, local government, educational/research, Eyewitness Report, I don't know, and other), the subject of the inquiry, and inquiry/question). This information will allow the UAS Support Center Analysts more information to efficiently answer the respondent's specific question.

The respondents public form process starts with submitting an inquiry by using the public webform, shared email inbox, or by calling the UAS Support Center Analysts. Once the public user submits an inquiry, they will receive an automated system email receipt that includes inquiry reference number, created date, "tell us about yourself," subject, and their inquiry/question. The public users can also use the inquiry status public page to check their inquiry status. For a public user to check the status of an inquiry, the system requires the user to have and enter the reference number and email address that is used to when creating the inquiry. Once the system confirms that the email address and reference number match with the inquiry record that's currently in the system, it will display inquiry status and created date of the inquiry.

The FAA received comments to the 60-day **Federal Register** Notice from the Small UAV Coalition, MAC Law, and one individual.

- The FAA considered all comments equally.
- The FAA agrees with the request for the system to send a confirmation email with the confirmation tracking code to track the status of the inquiry, similar to the www.regulations.gov website. This functionality is built into the system and will not allow for members of the public to view the status of another stakeholder's inquiry.
- The Case Management System collects appropriate information about the stakeholder's name, preferred

method of communication, phone number, zip code, and type of flyer to facilitate quick resolution of stakeholder inquiries. It will provide a historical record of an individual's inquiries for the UAS Support Center to reference.

- The FAA references the support center on FAA.gov/uas, UAS events, community partnerships and social media.
- The FAA provides the opportunity for a stakeholder to contact the FAA UAS Support Center by phone and/or email. The FAA commits to protecting personally identifiable information (PII) in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, under 5 U.S.C. 552(b)(6). In response, a text-based warning to avoid including PII will be included on the inquiry page to prevent unnecessary collection of this information.

Respondents: Anyone may use the publicly available form to submit an inquiry. The respondent may submit any number of inquiries.

Frequency: N/A.

Estimated Average Burden per Response: Less than two minutes for a typical inquiry.

Estimated Total Annual Burden: The majority of respondents submit a one-time inquiry. The annual burden per respondent per inquiry is two minutes. Estimate around 22,000 inquiries per year equating to 44,000 minutes of total burden to the public per year.

Issued in Washington, DC.

Danielle Corbett,

Manager, UAS Integration Office, Program and Data Management, AUS-410.

[FR Doc. 2022-15894 Filed 7-25-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4910-13-P

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Maritime Administration

Buy America Waiver Notification

AGENCY: Maritime Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT).

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: This notice provides information regarding the finding of the Maritime Administration (MARAD), in coordination with the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), that it is appropriate to grant a Buy America waiver based on nonavailability to the Philadelphia Regional Port Authority (PhilaPort) for procurement of foreign iron and steel components for the Packer Avenue Marine Terminal (PAMT) Capacity and Warehouse Relocation FY2017–2018 Infrastructure for Rebuilding America (INFRA) project. The foreign iron and steel components

are part of a Medium Voltage (MV) Cable Reel System, which is necessary for the conversion of two ship-to-shore (STS) cranes' drive power supply from diesel to electric. The non-domestic parts include: (i) Drive Gearbox and Motors; (ii) Electrical and Communications Collector System; (iii) MV cable drum; (iv) MV cable guides and diverter mounted to STS structure/legs; and (v) Gantry level bi-directional multi-roller, curved cable guide.

DATES: The effective date of the waiver is July 27, 2022.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For questions about this notice, please contact Robert Bouchard, Director, Office of Port Infrastructure Development, 202-366-5076 or via email at Robert.Bouchard@dot.gov. For legal questions, please contact Lauren Gill, MARAD Office of Chief Counsel, 202-366-2150, or via email at Lauren.Gill@dot.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Electronic Access

An electronic copy of this document may be downloaded from the **Federal Register's** home page at: www.FederalRegister.gov and the Government Publishing Office's database at: www.GovInfo.gov.

Background

PhilaPort's FY2017–2018 INFRA Project is required to follow the FHWA's Buy America requirements at 23 U.S.C. 313 and implementing regulations at 23 CFR 635.410. FHWA's Buy America regulation in 23 CFR 635.410 requires a domestic manufacturing process for any steel or iron products (including protective coatings) that are permanently incorporated in a Federal-aid construction project. The regulation also provides for a waiver of the Buy America requirements when the application would be inconsistent with the public interest or when satisfactory quality domestic steel and iron products are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities. This notice provides information regarding MARAD's finding that it is appropriate to grant the PhilaPort a Buy America waiver based on nonavailability for procurement of foreign iron and steel components for the MV Cable Reel System, which is necessary for the conversion of two ship-to-shore (STS) cranes' drive power supply from diesel to electric. The non-domestic parts include: (i) Drive Gearbox and Motors; (ii) Electrical and Communications Collector System; (iii) MV cable drum; (iv) MV cable guides and diverter mounted to STS structure/

legs; and (v) Gantry level bi-directional multi-roller, curved cable guide.

Background on the Project: The DOT awarded PhilaPort¹ a \$25.5M FY2017–2018 INFRA grant² for its PAMT Capacity and Warehouse Relocation Project, which has a total project cost of roughly \$122M.³ MARAD is designated as the DOT operating agency responsible for administering the Project. The Project includes the electrification of two existing Hyundai STS diesel cranes (referred to as H–6 and H–7) to eliminate air emissions and improve operational reliability. The cranes were installed at PAMT in 2004 and are the most utilized cranes on the terminal for unloading cargo from container vessels. According to PhilaPort, depending on the workload, the cranes can consume between 20 to 100 gallons of diesel fuel per hour.

PhilaPort determined that delivering utility-supplied electric power to the STS cranes required a trailing MV Cable Reel System. The MV Cable Reel System allows the STS cranes to be mobile along the dock by reeling cable in and out from a motorized and synchronized cable drum as the crane moves along the berth. The cable also delivers fiber communications to and from the cranes and the terminal. PhilaPort currently has five other STS cranes that operate alongside the H–6 and H–7 cranes that use a similar MV Cable Reel system. Additionally, the dock where H–6 and H–7 operate has been retrofitted to allow for the electrification of the two cranes via this system.

The crane electrification project will have substantial environmental benefits due to the elimination of harmful air emissions after the transition to electric drives. PhilaPort's PAMT has a planned annual container throughput that is forecasted to require 4,103 hours of operation for both H–6 and H–7. At this level of operation, PhilaPort estimates that converting the cranes to utility-supplied electricity would eliminate 109,896 of diesel crane hours and over 100,000 tons of harmful air emissions over their lifetime. Additionally, the conversion of the cranes from diesel to electric will result in significant cost savings to PhilaPort due to the reduction in fuel usage, energy costs, and improvements in efficiency and reliability of the cranes.

Background on the Waiver Request: PhilaPort began designing the crane electrification project in April 2020, at which point it became apparent that a Buy America-compliant MV Cable Reel System could not be sourced domestically. After further discussions with MARAD, PhilaPort requested that the design engineer perform a market study among potential suppliers. The design engineer contacted three known suppliers in the industry and one potential supplier in a related industry. All four respondents confirmed that they could not supply a fully Buy America-compliant MV Cable Reel System.

After receiving the results of the market study and discussing with MARAD, PhilaPort proceeded to bid the crane electrification project in the hope that bidding contractors could engage resources to identify a fully Buy America-compliant MV Cable Reel System. On June 28, 2021, PhilaPort received bids on the Project from only two contractors, both of whom proposed the same non-compliant supplier for the MV Cable Reel System.

After unsuccessfully identifying domestic manufacturers of the MV Cable Reel System, on September 8, 2021, PhilaPort submitted a Buy America waiver request to MARAD for the procurement of an MV Cable Reel System containing foreign iron and steel components needed to complete the PAMT INFRA Project. The foreign components⁴ include: (i) Drive Gearbox and Motors; (ii) Electrical and Communications Collector System; (iii) MV cable drum; (iv) MV cable guides and diverter mounted to STS structure/legs; and (v) Gantry level bi-directional multi-roller, curved cable guide.

The MV Cable Reel System is included under an approximately \$5.5 million contract to complete the crane electrification project. PhilaPort estimates that the MV Cable Reel System itself will cost \$410,000 out of that total project cost. Of the \$410,000, approximately \$110,000, or 2% of the total contract cost, is the cost of the foreign steel and iron components contained in the MV Cable Reel System. The remaining \$300,000 is non-steel/iron electrical trailing cable. All other costs associated with this contract are expected to comply with Buy America requirements.

In accordance with the statutory requirement at 23 U.S.C. 313(g), MARAD published a notice of intent to

issue a waiver on the FHWA website on April 27, 2022, at <https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/construction/contracts/waivers.cfm?id=165>. MARAD received no comments in response to the publication. Additionally, the PhilaPort point of contact similarly did not receive any comments or inquiries. Thus, PhilaPort did not receive any new information indicating that the subject components could be produced by domestic manufacturers.

Although PhilaPort did not identify a Buy America-compliant MV Cable Reel System, it provided information to MARAD supporting its waiver request, including information:

- Supporting the necessity of the MV Cable Reel System for converting the STS cranes from diesel to electric;
- Documenting efforts to locate compliant manufactured products;
- Demonstrating that alternative designs were infeasible; and
- Describing the effects of denying the request.

Although ultimately unsuccessful, PhilaPort made substantial efforts to find a Buy America-compliant MV Cable Reel System.

Timing and Need for a Waiver.

According to PhilaPort, the approval of a Buy America waiver for the MV Cable Reel System is critical to maintain the schedule of ongoing construction on the INFRA Project. Currently, the lead time for this major component is between 20 to 30 weeks, so any delay in approving the waiver will result in project delays and additional time the STS cranes will operate under diesel power. Without the waiver for the relevant system, the crane electrification project cannot move forward, and the environmental and operational benefits of the project would be lost.

Executive Order 14005. Executive Order 14005, “Ensuring the Future is Made in All of America by All of America’s Workers,” provides that agencies should, consistent with applicable law, maximize the use of goods, products, and materials produced in, and services offered in, the U.S. 86 FR 7475 (Jan. 28, 2021). Based on the information contained in the waiver request from PhilaPort and the lack of comments following publication of a notice seeking comment on April 27, 2022, regarding available domestic manufacturers for the subject parts, MARAD concludes that issuing a waiver is consistent with Executive Order 14005.

Finding and Request for Comments

Based on all the information available to the Agency, MARAD concludes that there are no Buy America-compliant

¹ PhilaPort's Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) is J4QYLRK4VSR5.

² The INFRA program is described under the assistance listing program title “Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects” (assistance listing number 20.934).

³ The Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) for the INFRA project is 693JF71910026.

⁴ Depending on which vendor is selected by PhilaPort, the country of origin for these components will most likely be either Germany or Italy.

relevant components for the MV Cable Reel System needed for the Project, including: (i) Drive Gearbox and Motors; (ii) Electrical and Communications Collector System; (iii) MV cable drum; (iv) MV cable guides and diverter mounted to STS structure/legs; and (v) Gantry level bi-directional multi-roller, curved cable guide. This finding only includes components identified in the waiver request and supporting documents included on FHWA's website.

The PhilaPort and its contractors and subcontractors involved in the procurement of the relevant components are reminded of the need to comply with the Cargo Preference Act in 46 CFR part 381, if applicable.

To avoid the possibility of requiring waivers for these items in the future, MARAD will work with industry to better understand the demand for these components and the potential for domestic production of these items in the future. We will then follow-up with the Office of Management and Budget's Made in America Office and the U.S. Department of Commerce, as appropriate, to assess the potential for domestic production to meet the forecasted demand for these items.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 117 of the SAFETEA-LU Technical Corrections Act of 2008 (Pub. L. 110-244, 122 Stat. 1572), MARAD is providing this notice as its finding that a waiver of Buy America requirements is appropriate. MARAD invites public comment on this finding for an additional 5 days following the effective date of the finding. Comments may be submitted to FHWA's website via the link provided to the waiver page noted above.

(Authority: 23 U.S.C. 117; 23 U.S.C. 313; Pub. L. 110-244; 23 CFR 635.410)

By order of the Maritime Administrator.

T. Mitchell Hudson, Jr.,

Secretary, Maritime Administration.

[FR Doc. 2022-16012 Filed 7-25-22; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4910-81-P

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration

[Docket No. NHTSA-2022-0043]

Agency Information Collection Activities; Notice and Request for Comment; Consolidated Labeling Requirements for Motor Vehicles (Except the VIN)

AGENCY: National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), Department of Transportation (DOT).

ACTION: Notice and request for comments on a request for extension of a currently-approved information collection.

SUMMARY: The National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) invites public comments about our intention to request the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) approval to renew an information collection. Before a Federal agency can collect certain information from the public, it must receive approval from OMB. Under procedures established by the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, before seeking OMB approval, Federal agencies must solicit public comment on proposed collections of information, including extensions and reinstatement of previously approved collections. *This document describes a collection of labeling information on seven Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) for which NHTSA intends to seek OMB approval. The labeling requirements include brake fluid warning, glazing labeling, air bag warning labels, seat belt labeling, compressed natural gas (CNG) vehicle fuel label, and CNG fuel container labels.*

DATES: Comments must be submitted on or before September 26, 2022.

ADDRESSES: You may submit comments, identified by the NHTSA docket number identified above, through any of the following methods:

- **Federal eRulemaking Portal:** <http://www.regulations.gov>. Follow the online instructions for submitting comments.
- **Fax:** 1-202-493-2251.
- **Mail or Hand Delivery:** Docket Management, U.S. Department of Transportation, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, West Building, Room W12-140, Washington, DC 20590, between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m., Monday through Friday, except on Federal holidays.

Instructions: All submissions must include the agency name and docket number for this proposed collection of information. Note that all comments

received will be posted without change to <http://www.regulations.gov>, including any personal information provided. Please see the Privacy Act heading below.

Privacy Act: Anyone is able to search the electronic form of all comments received into any of our dockets by the name of the individual submitting the comment (or signing the comment, if submitted on behalf of an association, business, labor union, etc.). You may review DOT's complete Privacy Act Statement in the **Federal Register** published on April 11, 2000 (65 FR 19477-78) or you may visit <https://www.transportation.gov/privacy>.

Docket: For access to the docket to read background documents or comments received, go to <http://www.regulations.gov> or the street address listed above. Follow the online instructions for accessing the dockets via internet.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For additional information or access to background documents, contact James Myers, NHTSA, 1200 New Jersey Avenue SE, West Building, Room W43-320, NRM-100, Washington, DC 20590. Mr. Myers' telephone number is 202-366-1810. Please identify the relevant collection of information by referring to its OMB Control Number.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Under the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, before an agency submits a proposed collection of information to OMB for approval, it must first publish a document in the **Federal Register** providing a 60-day comment period and otherwise consult with members of the public and affected agencies concerning each proposed collection of information. The OMB has promulgated regulations describing what must be included in such a document. Under OMB's regulation (at 5 CFR 1320.8(d)), an agency must ask for public comment on the following:

- (i) whether the proposed collection of information is necessary for the proper performance of the functions of the agency, including whether the information will have practical utility;
- (ii) the accuracy of the agency's estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of information, including the validity of the methodology and assumptions used;
- (iii) how to enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected;
- (iv) how to minimize the burden of the collection of information on those who are to respond, including the use of appropriate automated, electronic, mechanical, or other technological